
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Fields

AGENDA March 04, 2015

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Fields

Presentation Commissioner Randy Fairbanks and Commissioner Sabrena Turner-Smedley will honor the
University of Tennessee of  Chattanooga Moccasins Football Team for advancing to the Football
Championship Subdivision Playoffs.

Presentation Mayor Coppinger Proclaiming Luther Masingill Day.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - February 11, 2015

Minutes Agenda Session - February 11, 2015

Minutes Regular Meeting - February 18, 2015

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report January 2015

Report Trustee Monthly Report January 2015

Res. No. 315-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the oath of Deputy
County Clerk, the oath of Deputy Sheriff, and the oath of member of the Board of Directors
Hamilton County Railroad Authority.

Res. No. 315-2 A Resolution confirming the reappointment by the County Mayor of one member to the Carter
Street Corporation Board of Directors for a term ending March 4, 2019.

Res. No. 315-3 A Resolution proclaiming the month of March 2015 as Myeloma Awareness Month.

Res. No. 315-4A A Resolution to rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District, A-1 Agricultural District and C-2
Local Business Commercial District to C-2 Local Business Commercial District, properties
located at 1704 & 1714 Thrasher Pike and 1636 & 7640 Middle Valley Road.

Res. No. 315-4B A Resolution to rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District, A-1 Agricultural District and C-2
Local Business Commercial District to C-2 Local Business Commercial District, properties
located at 1704 & 1714 Thrasher Pike and 1636 & 7640 Middle Valley Road.

Res. No. 315-5 A Resolution accepting the unit price bid of Shields Electronics for Bogen equipment for the
period beginning March 4, 2015 through March 3, 2016, with the option to renew for one (1)
additional one year term for the Telecommunications Department and to authorize the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 315-6 A Resolution accepting the bid of Thomas Brothers Construction Company, Inc. for the
construction of the Ooltewah-Ringgold Road and Standifer Gap Road intersection improvements
for an amount not to exceed $749,593.10 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 315-7 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of January 1, 2015,
through January 31, 2015, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 315-8 A Resolution accepting the bid of Prosys Information Systems for Dell servers and Dell power
vault system components amounting to $63,039.36 for the Information Technology Services
Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.

Res. No. 315-9 A Resolution accepting the bid of Insight Public Sector for Microsoft SQL server software
licenses amounting to $29,335.28 for the Information Technology Services Department and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 315-10 An Initial Resolution of the Legislative Body of Hamilton County, Tennessee authorizing the
issuance of interest-bearing general obligation bonds of Hamilton County, Tennessee, in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $40,000,000, to be issued in one or more series, to
finance or refinance certain school projects and various other public works projects in Hamilton
County pursuant to Section 9-21-101, ET.SEQ., of the Tennessee Code Annotated.

Res. No. 315-11 A Resolution of the Legislative Body of Hamilton County, Tennessee, approving the selection of
Bond Counsel and a Financial Advisor in connection with the proposed issuance by the County
of its general obligation bonds.

Res. No. 315-12 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to enter into a contract with the United States
Geological Survey (USGS) to provide Hamilton County with LiDAR data at a cost of $71,502 and
to amend Hamilton County General Budget by adding $47,668 to the revenue budget and
$47,668 to the expenditure budget.

Res. No. 315-13 A Resolution amending the rules and procedures of the Hamilton County Board of
Commissioners to allow individuals and/or delegations to appear and address the Commission
on matters being considered prior to the Commission making a decision.

Res. No. 315-14 A Resolution waiving the Hamilton County Purchasing Rules and authorizing the County Mayor
to donate narcotics/patrol dogs to their respective Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office handlers at
the time such dogs are retired from service, or otherwise release said dogs from the County
inventory in a manner in the best interest of public safety.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  February 11, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 11th day of February, 2015, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 2

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 Criminal Court Clerk Reports for October though December 2014 would be 
submitted as a matter of record.  

 Juvenile Court Clerk Reports for September and October 2014 would be 
submitted as a matter of record.  

 An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

 Quarterly investment report would be submitted for the record. 
 Quarterly fee office reports would be submitted for the record. 
 A Report confirming the reappointment of Harold Austin as a Commissioner to 

the Eastside Utility District’s Board of Commissioners would be submitted as a 
matter of record.  

 Resolution No. 215-17 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

 Resolutions No. 215-20, 215-24 through 215-26, 215-28, and 215-29 through 
215-36 were assigned to the Finance Committee, chaired by Commissioner 
Graham. 

 Resolutions No. 215-21, 215-22A, and 215-22B were assigned to the Zoning 
Committee, chaired by Commissioner Haynes.  

 Resolutions No. 215-18, 215-19, 215-23, 215-27, and 215-37 would be heard by 
the Committee of the Whole. 

 

Chairman of the Finance Committee, Commissioner Graham, announced that 

the Finance Committee would meet in the Commission Room immediately following the 

agenda session.  

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, spoke regarding 

Resolution 215-22A and 215-22B, which would rezone properties located at 1636 & 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 3

7640 Middle Valley Road and 1704 & 1714 Thrasher Pike. Commissioner Haynes 

stated that these items would be postponed and heard at the February 25th Agenda 

Session.  He further stated that delaying Resolutions No. 215-22A and 215-22B would 

allow for further discussion to take place between the developer and the community.  It 

was noted that significant opposition was present in the audience.  

 

In response to Commissioner Graham and Commissioner Beck’s concerns, 

Commisioner Haynes reported that the community and the developer have both 

requested additional time to allow for further dialogue on the matter. 

 

Chairman Fields stated that Resolution No. 215-18 would now be heard by the 

Committee of the Whole. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 215-18 

 

Attorney Taylor spoke regarding this item, which would reappoint Bruce O’Neil, 

Constance Williams, and Mike Doubleday to the Hamilton County Health and Safety 

Hearing Board, for four year terms beginning January 19, 2015 and ending January 19, 

2019.  Attorney Taylor spoke highly of the job these individuals had done serving the 

board previously.  Furthermore, he pointed out that the Commissioners that originally 

appointed each of these members expressed their desire to do so again.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 4

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 215-19 

 

 Mayor Coppinger spoke regarding this item, which would approve the 

appointment of Ben C. Wilson as Director of the Highway Department of Hamilton 

County.  Mayor Coppinger explained that Mr. Wilson would be replacing current 

Director,  Harold Austin, upon his retirement on March 4, 2015.  The Mayor expressed 

his thankfulness for the many decades of valuable and diligent service Mr. Austin has 

given Hamilton County.  It was noted that Mr. Wilson currently has 25 years of service 

with Hamilton County and has worked very closely with Mr. Austin for the past twelve 

years.  The Mayor also praised Mr. Wilson for the job he had done while working on 

clearing land necessary to help secure the Volkswagen project. Both men were publicly 

recognized in the audience.  

 

 Several members of the Commission thanked Mr. Austin for his service to 

Hamilton County, and welcomed Mr. Wilson to the position.  At this time Commissioner 

Graham asked Mr. Austin to stand for a round of applause. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 5

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 215-23 

 

 Alecia Poe spoke regarding this item which would seek to clarify the health 

insurance benefits available to Hamilton County employees upon their retirement by 

Resolution number 1014-33, as amended.  Ms. Poe noted that clarification needed to 

be made in regards to the wording in a section of the Employee Handbook, which  

included the word, spouse, and has since been removed.  

 

 Commissioner Graham clarified that this Resolution did not alter or amend the 

benefits available to Hamilton County Employees upon their retirement.  He noted that 

this was a simple housekeeping issue.  

 

Mayor Coppinger expressed his support for this item and publicly acknowledged 

Captain Bill Johnson  from the Sheriff’s office in the audience.  He thanked Captain 

Johnson for working with staff to clarify this matter. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 215-27 

 

 Albert Kiser, Administrator of Finance, spoke regarding this Resolution which 

would authorize the County Mayor to release $2,201,000 of funds held in escrow from 

the sale of the former Ooltewah Elementary School to the county’s general fund.  This 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 6

item would also authorize the expenditure of funds up to $2,201,000 from the County 

line of credit to purchase safety and security upgrades and additions for Hamilton 

County Schools.  Mr. Kiser added that releasing the funds to the general fund would 

offset some of the expenditures for Volkswagen.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd expressed his concern about the funds from the sale of the 

school being used for Volkswagen expenditures.  He added that it would be his desire 

to see the $2,201,000 in proceeds evenly divided between all school districts to be used 

for much needed maintenance or various other improvements.  

 

Mayor Coppinger spoke about this resolution stating that by using a portion of the 

funds from the school to offset Volkswagen expenditures, there would be a significant 

savings to the funds balance.  Mayor Coppinger expressed his appreciation to the 

finance team, and added that Hamilton County is the only Tennessee County to receive 

three AAA bond ratings.  In closing he added that the Volkswagen  project and the 

possibility of future expansion is a very important ingredient for expanding job 

opportunities in Hamilton County.  

 

In response to Commissioner Fairbanks question, Mr. Kiser clarified that 

Resolution No. 215-27 seeks to borrow $2,201,000 from the line of credit for the 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 7

security system upgrades in schools, and the funds from the sale of the school property 

will be placed in the general fund to help off set Volkswagen expenses.  

 

Commissioner Graham explained that the funds from the sale of Ooltewah 

Elementary will not only be used for security camera upgrades, but additional proceeds 

from former Commissioner Skillern’s discretionary funds would supplement the 

construction of a public road in District 1, which is estimated to cost $250,000.  

Commissioner Graham also spoke about the need for improvements in schools across 

all districts.  He asked that Resolution 215-27 be amended and he spoke in great detail 

about the proposed changes.  He recommended that the proceeds from the sale of East 

Brainerd Elementary be divided among the nine districts.  Each  Commissioner would 

then consult with their respective school board member and recommend how the funds 

would be spent for school improvements in their district.  The cash proceeds from the 

sale would be given to the Mayor to reduce the outstanding expense balance for the 

Volkswagen expansion project.  Commissioner Haynes and Commisioner Beck voiced 

their support of this proposal.  

 

Dr. Lee McDade, Assistant Superintendent, for the Hamilton County Department 

of Education, addressed the Commission about the security upgrades in schools.  He 

noted that all schools in Hamilton County would receive Vigilon Security cameras with 

full coverage of their campuses.  In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Dr. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 8

McDade stated that he would supply the Commission with a list of how the funds would 

be dispersed among the schools in all nine districts.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 215-37 

 

 River City Company President and CEO Kim White addressed the Commission.  

She noted the Resolution would make certain findings, and delegate certain authority, 

as well as authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute an agreement for 

payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes.  She stated that the development will be located 

at the corner of Lindsay and Fifth streets.  She clarified that Walk2Campus is seeking 

tax breaks in exchange for renting 16 of the 64 units at an affordable rate.  During 

lengthy conversation it was noted that the school portion of the tax base would be paid 

in full.  

 

 Commissioner Graham expressed his support for this project.  He explained that 

Hamilton County would continue to get the full tax revenue it is currently recieving from 

this property, and that the schools would benefit immediately.  He emphasized the 

importance of having a vibrant downtown.  He noted that the PILOT program was a 

necessary tool in meeting the demand for affordable housing in downtown Chattanooga.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 9

 Commissioner Boyd publicly recognized Walk2Campus representatives in the 

audience.  He questioned the possibility of the property owner selling the development 

at an inflated price before the ten year tax freeze expired.  In response to Commissioner 

Boyd’s concerns Ms. White confirmed that the ten year tax freeze was transferrable with 

approval from the Health, Educational, and Housing Facility Board.  In closing it was 

noted that the 16 affordable units would be rented to residents who have annual income 

at or below 20 percent of Hamilton County’s median income of $31,000.  Commissioner 

Boyd added that it would be difficult to determine who would qualify for affordable 

housing.  

 

 Attorney Taylor confirmed that if the the PILOT agreement is granted, Hamilton 

County will receive the same tax base revenue that they are currently receiving. 

  

 Roe Elam, Developer for Walk2Campus properties, responded to several 

Commissioner’s questions about the tax revenue the county would be receiving with the 

PILOT program in place.  There was lengthy discussion regarding his tax revenue 

calculations versus those discussed by Commissioner Boyd.  Several Commissioners 

requested to see those calculations before making a decision.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 10

 Commissioner Smedley asked the County Clerk’s office to supply her with any 

residential housing PILOT agreements that have been approved by the Commission in 

the past. 

 

Commissioner Graham reminded the Commission that Ms. White was an agent 

for the County who negotiates the details and presents the proposed PILOT 

agreements to the Commission.  He reiterated that the current amount of tax revenue 

Hamilton County is receiving will stay the same for the next ten years.  Once 

construction is complete the property will be reassessed. After reassessment the city 

and county portion of the tax base will stay the same for ten years, and the school 

portion will immediately increase and those taxes will be paid in full to the school 

system. 

 

 In response to Chairman Fields question, Attorney Taylor explained that the 

PILOT program met all the requirements for the county.   

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 11

Mayor Coppinger spoke about the Erlanger presentation intended for today’s 

meeting. He noted that at this time there was not a rescheduled date for the 

presentation.  

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Education Committee, announced the 

second joint meeting between the Education Committee and the Hamilton County Board 

of Education’s Facilities Committee.  The meeting would be held at Chattanooga School 

for the Liberal Arts (CSLA) on Wednesday, February 18th from 8 - 9 a.m.  

 

Commissioner Boyd also publicly recognized those in the audience opposed to 

the zoning resolutions in Middle Valley.  

 

Commissioner Boyd applauded Girl’s Leadership Academy for being one of the 

top five percent of schools for their improvement in TCAP scores.  He praised executive 

director Elaine Swafford for the marvelous job she is doing at the school.  

 

Commissioner Graham, Chairman of the Finance Committee, praised 

Commissioners for the open discussion that took place during the meeting. He 

announced that the Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room 

immediately following the agenda session.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 
 

 12

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, announced a brief 

meeting regarding Resolution No. 215-21 in the conference room immediately following 

the agenda session.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned until 

Wednesday, February, 18th at 9:30 AM. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved:  

 
Date      Clerk’s Initials 
 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  February 11, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 11th day of February, 2015, a 

Recessed Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun 

and held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County 

Commission Room, when the following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, 

Commissioner Beck, Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, 

Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields.    Total present – 9.  Total absent 

-0. 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill 

McGriff. 

 

Commissioner Beck introduced Pastor Mike Leroux of Hickory Valley 

Baptist Church for the invocation. Pastor Leroux spoke briefly regarding his 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FEBRUARY 11, 2015 
 

 2

experience as a young boy when going to the polls with his mother. He 

expressed appreciation to those serving in government.  

 

  Commissioner Beck led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

Chairman Fields announced that there was not any scheduled business 

for the Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

Being no further business Chairman Fields declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

    Respectfully submitted: 

 

      

____________________________________    
    William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

Approved: 

 

Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 1

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  February 18, 2015 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 18th day of February, 2015, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Fields. Total 

present - 9.  Total absent – 0.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 2

 Commissioner Beck introduced Pastor Gary Armes, Senior Minister of Hickory 

Valley Christian Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Beck led in the 

pledge to the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of January 28, 2015, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of January 28, 2015, the Regular Meeting of February 4,  2015, be approved, 

treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed.  The foregoing Motion was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd , “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

CRIMINAL COURT CLERK REPORTS 

 

The Criminal Court Clerk reports for October through December 2014 were 

submitted and made a matter of record.  

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 3

JUVENILE COURT CLERK REPORT 

 

 The Juvenile Court Clerk reports for September and October 2014 were 

submitted and made a matter of record.  

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

 An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting of February 

9, 2015.  

 

QUATERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR QUARTER ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2014 

 

 The quarterly investment report of Hamilton County government, for the quarter 

ending December 31, 2014 was submitted as a matter of record.  

 

FEE OFFICE REPORTS 

 

 Fee reports for the following constitutional officers were submitted as a matter of 

record:  

 Circuit Court Clerk – October 2014 through December 2014 
 County Clerk – October 2014 through December 2014 
 Register of Deeds – October 2014 through December 2014 
 Clerk & Master – October 2014 through December 2014 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 4

 

ORDER OF REAPPOINTMENT 

 

County Mayor Coppinger submitted for the record an order reappointing Harold 

Austin to the Eastside Utility District Board of Commissioners for a four-year term 

expiring February 2, 2019.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-17  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS AND OATHS OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFFS.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 215-17.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-21  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 10453 EAST BRAINERD ROAD. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 5

 

 Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, spoke regarding 

Resolution 215-21 which seeks to rezone property located at 10453 East Brainerd 

Road.  He recognized Billy McCoy, owner and developer of the property, in the 

audience. Commissioner Haynes noted that the Zoning Committee met last week to 

discuss this property, and one lot remained in question. He addressed those questions 

to Commissioner Smedley as the lot is located in her district, and she has worked with 

the developer and the home owner’s association.    

 

 Chairman Fields advised that a motion must first be made to put the resolution 

on the floor before discussion could take place.  

 

In response, Commissioner Haynes confirmed that with the current letter of offer 

between the owner and the buyer, the Zoning Committee recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 215-21.   

 

At this time Commissioner Smedley entered into the record the sales agreement 

between Billy McCoy, the owner and Crystal Brook Home Owner’s Association, the 

buyer. It was noted that the Clerk’s office had been given a copy of the agreement.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 6

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-22A  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND C-2 LOCAL 

BUSINESS COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS COMMERCIAL 

DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 1704 & 1714 THRASHER PIKE AND 1636 & 

7640 MIDDLE VALLEY ROAD.  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 215-22B  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, A-1 AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND C-2 LOCAL 

BUSINESS COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS COMMERCIAL 

DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 1704 & 1714 THRASHER PIKE AND 1636 & 

7640 MIDDLE VALLEY ROAD. 

 

 During the February 11th Agenda Session Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of 

the Zoning Committee, requested that Resolution No. 215-22A and 215-22B be 

deferred to the March 4th Agenda. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 7

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-20  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF K9 

WORKING DOGS INTERNATIONAL, LLC FOR THREE (3) BELGIAN MALINOIS 

CANINE DOGS AMOUNTING TO $31,050.00 FOR SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT AND 

TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-24  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT WITH THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 

COUNTY AND CITY HEALTH OFFICIALS (NACCHO) FOR $3,500.00 TO SUPPORT 

THE MEDICAL RESERVE CORPS OF CHATTANOOGA, AND TO AMEND THE 

ADMINISTRATION REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES BUDGET. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-25  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER AN AGREEMENT WITH THE TENNESSEE EMERGENCY 

MANAGEMENT AGENCY (TEMA) FOR A GRANT OF $303,800.04 WITH A TERM 

ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 FOR FIXED NUCLEAR FACILITIES EMERGENCY 

PLANNING. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-26  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF MOUNTAIN 

VIEW FORD FOR ONE (1) 4X2 UTILITY VEHICLE FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 8

FELONY COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PROGRAM AMOUNTING TO $19,116.00 

AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-28  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

TWENTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($20,000.00) IN DISCRETIONARY FUNDS (AS 

ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT THREE) TOWARD THE CONSTRUCTION OF PHASE II 

OF THE GREEN HOUSE COMPLEX AT HIXSON HIGH SCHOOL. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-29  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF CONTECH 

ENGINEERED SOLUTIONS, LLC, AND SHERMAN DIXIE CONCRETE INDUSTRIES, 

INC. FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2015, 

THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2015, FOR CONCRETE AND METAL CULVERT FOR 

THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-30  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF 

SEQUATCHIE CONCRETE SERVICE, 84 LUMBER COMPANY AND PRO BUILD 

FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2015, 

THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2015, FOR BAGGED PORTLAND CEMENT FOR THE 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 9

RESOLUTION NO. 215-31  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF MARTIN 

MARIETTA MATERIALS, VULCAN CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS, DUNLAP 

STONE, INC., APAC PAVING, INC. DBA MIDSOUTH AGGREGATES, SEQUATCHIE 

CONCRETE SERVICE, INC., AND FINELINES LANDSCAPING, INC. FOR SIX (6) 

MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2015, THROUGH 

SEPTEMBER 6, 2015, FOR CRUSHED STONE AND SAND FOR THE HIGHWAY 

DEPARTMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-32  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF 

SEQUATCHIE CONCRETE SERVICE, INC., TNT CONCRETE, LLC AND LAMBCON 

READY MIX FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 

2015 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2015, FOR READY MIX CONCRETE FOR THE 

HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-33  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF TALLEY 

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. DBA SOUTHEASTERN MATERIALS, INC., 

HUDSON MATERIALS COMPANY, BLACKLIDGE EMULSIONS, INC., DUNLAP 

STONE, INC. AND HIWASSEE PAVING, LLC. FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT 

PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 7, 2015, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 6, 2015, FOR 

ASPHALT ROAD MATERIALS AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 10

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-34  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH GEO SERVICES, LLC 

FOR GEOENVIRONMENTAL TESTING NECESSARY FOR DESIGN OF THE 

WOLFTEVER CREEK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ADDITION FOR AN AMOUNT NOT 

TO EXCEED $10,250.00 OF PREVIOUSLY BUDGETED FUNDS. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-35  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH THOMPSON 

ENGINEERING FOR GEOENVIRONMENTAL TESTING NECESSARY FOR DESIGN 

OF THE SALE CREEK MIDDLE/HIGH SCHOOL ADDITION FOR AN AMOUNT NOT 

TO EXCEED $27,500.00 OF PREVIOUSLY BUDGETED FUNDS. 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-36  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH MORELAND ALTOBELLI 

ASSOCIATES, INC FOR GEOENVIRONMENTAL TESTING NECESSARY FOR 

DESIGN OF THE NOLAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ADDITION FOR AN AMOUNT 

NOT TO EXCEED $9,943.00 OF PREVIOUSLY BUDGETED FUNDS. 

 

 Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 215-20, 215-

24 through 215-26, 215-28 through 215-36 and stated that the Finance Committee 

reviewed and recommended approval. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 11

Commissioner Graham addressed Commissioner Haynes to speak about 

Resolution 215-28 which would approve the expenditure of $20,000 in discretionary 

funds toward the construction of phase II of the green house complex at Hixson High 

School. He recognized Lee Friedlander, Agriculture Science teacher at Hixson High 

School, in the audience. Commissioner Haynes praised Mr. Friedlander for his efforts at 

Hixson High School in establishing an aquaponics lab. He also praised the students for 

excelling under Mr. Friedlander’s leadership.    

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 215-20, 215-24 through 215-26, and 215-28 through 215-36. 

 

Commissioner Mackey addressed the Mayor and commended his staff for 

sending out proper notifications to receive competitive bids on these items.  

 

Commissioner Boyd addressed the Commission about Resolution No. 215-20, 

which would accept the bid of K9 Working Dogs International for three Belgian Malinois 

dogs amounting to $31,050.00 for the Sheriff’s Department. He stated his concern 

about releasing the County’s liability and ownership of the dogs once they retire.  

 

In response to Commissioner Boyd’s concerns relating to the County’s liability for 

the retiring dogs, County Attorney Taylor noted that a Resolution addressing this issue 

would be placed on the March 4th agenda.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 12

  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

NO ACTION WAS TAKEN ON RESOLUTION NO. 215-18 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-18A  A RESOLUTION TO RE-APPOINT CONSTANCE 

WILLIAMS AND MIKE DOUBLEDAY TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH AND 

SAFETY HEARING BOARD FOR FOUR (4) YEAR TERMS BEGINNING JANUARY 

19, 2015 AND ENDING JANUARY 19, 2019. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 215-18A.   

 

Attorney Taylor spoke about this item which would reappoint Constance Williams 

and Mike Doubleday to the Hamilton County Health and Safety Hearing Board. It was 

noted that 215-18 was replaced with 215-18A because one member, Bruce O’Neal, was 

removed from the Resolution as he had previously been appointed to the board per 

Resolution No. 514-3.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 13

 

 Commissioner Graham praised Mike Doubleday for the job he is doing and 

publicly thanked him for his service to Hamilton County.  

 

The foregoing Resolution  was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-19  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT OF 

BEN C. WILSON AS DIRECTOR OF THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT OF HAMILTON 

COUNTY, TENNESSEE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 215-19.  The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 14

“Aye” Commissioner Haynes was not present for the vote.  Total present – 8.  Total 

absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-23  A RESOLUTION CLARIFYING THE HEALTH 

INSURANCE BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEES UPON 

THEIR  RETIREMENT BY RESOLUTION NO. 1014-33, AS AMENDED. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 215-23. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”;  

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, 

“Aye”. Commissioner Haynes was not present for the vote.  Total present – 8.  Total 

absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 215-27  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO RELEASE $2,201,000 OF FUNDS HELD IN ESCROW FROM THE SALE OF THE 

FORMER OOLTEWAH ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TO THE COUNTY GENERAL FUND 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS UP TO $2,201,000 FROM 

THE COUNTY LINE OF CREDIT TO PURCHASE SAFETY AND SECURITY 

UPGRADES AND ADDITIONS FOR HAMILTON COUNTY SCHOOLS. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 15

Commissioner Graham sought the floor to discuss Resolution No. 215-27A which 

incorporated changes he requested at last week’s agenda session.   

 

Chairman Fields ruled that the original resolution 215-27 must first be on the floor 

for discussion with a Motion and second before consideration of any amendments. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 215-27. 

 

Commissioner Graham spoke in support of an attachment to Resolution 215-27A 

which was prepared by the County Attorney and incorporated the amendments he had 

requested at last week’s agenda preparation. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

amend Resolution No. 215-27 as stated in documentation provided by County Attorney 

Taylor. 

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke about the amendment to Resolution 215-27. He 

praised County Attorney Taylor for a detailed clarification about what the amendment 

seeks to do. For clarification purposes, he stated that the amendment would commit the 

net proceeds from the forth-coming sale of East Brainerd Elementary School to be 

equally distributed among the nine County Commission districts and School districts. It 

was noted that the amendment specified the proceeds be spent exclusively for 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 16

school/education projects. These various needs shall be determined by each respective 

Commissioner in coordination with their respective School Board member and 

subsequently approved by the County Legislative body. Commissioner Boyd clarified 

that this amendment does not alter the line of credit allocated to the purchase of safety 

and security upgrades in schools.  

 

In response to Commissioner Fairbanks question, Commissioner Graham 

explained that this amendment allocates the forth-coming net proceeds from the sale of 

East Brainerd Elementary School evenly as to make it equitable for all districts.  

 

In response to Commissioner Mackey’s question, Attorney Taylor stated that the 

need of each district shall be determined by each respective Commissioner in 

coordination with their respective School Board member and subsequently approved by 

the county legislative body.  

 

Commissioners Smedley and Mackey expressed concern that equal division of 

proceeds by district would not be equitable because some districts had more schools to 

cover. 

 

In response to a question asked by Commissioner Haynes, Superintendent Rick 

Smith stated that the sale of East Brainerd Elementary would happen in February or 

March of 2016.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 17

The foregoing Motion to amend Resolution No. 215-27 was adopted on a Roll 

Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Nay”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Smedley, “Nay”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 2.   

 

Chairman Fields indicated the Motion to amend Resolution No. 215-27 passed 

and called for a roll call vote on the main motion to adopt Resolution No. 215-27, as 

amended and renumbered 215-27A. 

 

The foregoing Motion to adopt Resolution No. 215-27A was adopted on a roll call 

vote with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, 

“Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” 

votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 18

RESOLUTION NO. 215-37  A RESOLUTION TO MAKE CERTAIN FINDINGS 

RELATING TO THE UTC FIVE, LLC PROJECT, TO DELEGATE CERTAIN 

AUTHORITY TO THE HEALTH, EDUCATIONAL, AND HOUSING FACILITY BOARD 

OF THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR 

PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 215-37.   

 

Commissioner Graham clarified for the record that he is a sitting member on the 

River City Board of Directors. 

 

Due to illness and his inability to seek answers to questions he had on this 

resolution, Commissioner Mackey made a motion to table Resolution 215-37 for a 

week. Motion failed due to a lack of a second.  

 

Walk2Campus property developer, Roe Elam, responded to Commissioner 

Boyd’s question about the number of PILOT programs Walk2Campus has received on 

properties they manage. It was noted that Walk2Campus has two other properties in 

Hamilton County that receive tax abatement. 

   



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 19

At this time a lengthy discussion took place among Commissioners about the 

necessity of using a PILOT program to develop the property on Lindsay Street and Fifth 

Street.   

 

Kim White, River City Company President and CEO, spoke about the demand for 

affordable rental housing in downtown Chattanooga.  

 

Mark West, a citizen in opposition to the resolution, asked for recognition to 

speak.  Chairman Fields denied the request. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Nay”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, 

“Nay”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Smedley, “Nay”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Mackey abstained from voting. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  

Total “Aye” votes – 5 .  Total “Nay” votes – 3. Total Abstentions – 1.   

 

At this time Chairman Fields indicated he had failed to ask the Clerk to read the 

caption of Resolution 215-27A into the record. Deputy Clerk Godwin read the caption for 

the record. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 20

RESOLUTION 215-27A A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

RELEASE $2,201,000 OF FUNDS HELD IN ESCROW FROM THE SALE OF THE 

FORMER OOLTEWAH ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TO THE COUNTY GENERAL FUND 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS UP TO $2,201,000 FROM 

THE COUNTY LINE OF CREDIT TO PURCHASE SAFETY AND SECURITY 

UPGRADES AND ADDITIONS FOR HAMILTON COUNTY SCHOOLS; AND TO 

COMMIT THE PROCEEDS TO BE RECEIVED FROM THE SALE OF EAST 

BRAINERD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TO BE EQUALLY DIVIDED AMONG THE NINE 

(9) COUNTY COMMISSION/SCHOOL DISTRICTS AS SHALL BE APPROVED BY 

THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Education Committee, stated that the 

second joint meeting between the Education Committee and the Hamilton County Board 

of Education Facilities Committee was cancelled today; the reschedule date will be 

announced in the near future.  

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding payment in lieu of tax (PILOT) programs for 

new and expanding businesses.  He asked for information on compliance of these 

companies receiving abatements. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 21

 

In response to Commissioner Boyd’s request, Mayor Coppinger stated this 

information is diligently maintained and a copy may be picked-up in his office. 

 

Commissioner Smedley thanked Commissioner Boyd for his comments 

regarding PILOT agreements. In closing she publicly recognized School 

Superintendent, Rick Smith in the audience and acknowledged the importance of school 

tax dollars.  

 

Mayor Coppinger expressed his appreciation to the County Highway Department, 

the Sheriff’s Department, Emergency Medical Service, area fire departments, Electric 

Power Board, Department of Transportation, and others for their hard work to serve the 

public during recent inclement weather. In closing, he reported road closures and that 

several crews were out manning roads around the county. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks publicly recognized that Mark Smedley, Commissioner 

Smedley’s husband, was present in the audience. 

 

Mayor Coppinger pointed out that PILOT agreements are monitored very closely 

by the Mayor’s office, the Trustee’s office, the Assessor’s office, and the Chamber of 

Commerce to make certain they are in compliance. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2015 

 

 22

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Mark West residing at 2315 Heavenly View Drive Ooltewah, TN 37363 and Bill 

Reesor at 1404 Woodway Drive Ooltewah, TN 37363 addressed the Commission. Both 

expressed concern regarding conflict of interest existing when a member of the 

Commission votes on an issue for which they are also a board member for the company 

bringing the item to the Commission. Mr. West and Mr. Reesor spoke about doing away 

with payment in lieu of programs and implementing a senior tax freeze.  

 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until February 25, 2015 at 9:30 AM.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 

 
 

























No. 315-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
   A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY 
CLERK, THE OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF, AND THE OATH OF 
MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAMILTON COUNTY 
RAILROAD AUTHORITY. 

   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled "OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY 
CLERK" have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF 
have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled “THE OATH OF MEMBER OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAMILTON COUNTY RAILROAD 
AUTHORITY” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 
 

2. That the person named on the listing labeled "OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY 
CLERK" is accepted and the oath therefore is approved as taken; and 

 
3. That the person named on the listing labeled OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF is 

accepted and the oath therefore is approved as taken; and  
 
4. That the person named on the listing labeled “THE OATH OF MEMBER OF 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAMILTON COUNTY RAILROAD 
AUTHORITY” is accepted and the oath therefore is approved as taken; and 

 
5. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
MARCH 4, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 
Abby Adams 8670 Arbutus Dr. Champ Five LLC 
 Hixson, TN 37343 2830 Amnicola Hwy. 
 423-838-2229 Chattanooga, TN 37406 
  423-305-7777 
 
Patricia Anne Boland 2 Market St, # 312 Thunder Enterprises 
 Chattanooga, TN 37402 210 Battle Creek Rd. 
 423-488-4428 Kimball, TN 31380 
  N/A 
 
Wanda Boston P. O. Box 15155 N/A 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 N/A 
 423-362-3611 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Michelle Brown 344 Main St. Unum Group 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 1001 Airport Rd, Hgr. 6 
 423-667-9006 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-287-2792 
 
Gay Brown 622 Runyan Drive Engstrom Services, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 600 N. Holtzclaw Avenue 
 423-266-1042 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-622-4397 
 
Ben Brychta 4627 Sherry Lane Self Employed 
 Hixson, TN 37343 Same 
 423-870-3299 Same 
  423-240- 1919 
 
Jim Carden 12821 Old Dayton Pike Self Employed 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 Same 
 423-432-4901 Same 
  Same 
 
Jamie M. Carpenter 9327 Wyndover Dr. Misty L. Harris, PLLC 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 200 E. 8th St. 
 423-499-5406 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-756-5031 
 
Melissa C. Cuzzort 216 School House Rd. Walden's Ridge Utility District 
 Signal Mtn, TN 37377 3900 Taft Highway 
 423-595-6500 Signal Mtn, TN 37377 
  423-886-2683 
 
Tina A. Davies 8034 Mill Creek Road Walden's Ridge Utility District 
 Signal Mtn, TN 37377 3900 Taft Highway 
 423-521-4400 Signal Mtn, TN 37377 
  423-886-2683 

 1 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
MARCH 4, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 
Megan Dennis 1021 Grey Oaks Ln Transcard 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 1301 Riverfront Parkway 
 423-802-8597 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-553-5249 
 
Kimberly A. Doremus 1952 Paris Metz Rd. The Patten Group 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 832 Georgia Ave, Ste. 360 
 423-892-0958 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-531-0360 
 
Diana East 8512 Dunn Hill Lane TVFCU 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5150 Austin Rd. 
 423-356-3910 Hixson, TN 37343 
  N/A 
 
Ben Edwards 4716 Rocky River Rd. Hamilton County Clerk 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 6135 Heritage Park Dr. 
 423-595-7072 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-209-7905 
 
Robert Felts 1041 Riverhills Circle Suntrust 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 1969 Northpoint Blvd 
 423-322-9887 Hixson, TN 37343 
  N/A 
 
James A. Fields 4058 Day Lily Trl Samples, Jennings, et al 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 130 Jordan Dr. 
 423-260-1674 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-2006 
 
Georgia L. French 1137 Chippewah Drive Browne Laboratories, Inc. 
 East Ridge, TN 37412 P. O. Box 22817 
 423-698-6796 Chattanooga, TN 37422 
  423-698-7777 
 
Lou Gibbs 731-C Mansion Circle Virginia College-Chattanooga 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 721 Eastgate Loop Rd. 
 423-322-6999 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-893-2045 
 
Denise Gibson 680 Horton Rd. SE Brand Mortgage 
 Cleveland, TN 37323 2158 Northgate Pk Ln, Ste. 420 
 423-476-6869 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-842-6004 
 
Sharon K. Gibson 10805 Ooltewah Georgetown Rd. Volunteer Energy 
 Georgetown, TN 37336 P. O. Box 1 
 423-344-7196 Georgetown, TN 37336 
  423-344-8382 

 2 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
MARCH 4, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 
Prudence Giles 1905 Julian Ridge Rd. HCDE 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 9627 East Brainerd Rd. 
 423-424-6920 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-855-6141 
 
Colleen M. Gilley 4687 Boynton Dr. Churchill Mortgage Corp. 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 1510 Gunbarrel Rd, Ste. 400 
 770-862-6225 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-899-6898 
 
Gathel L. Hazell 8766 River Cove TVA 
 Harrison, TN 37341 1101 Market St. 
 423-326-1262 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-751-2974 
 
John G. Huisman 144 Huisman Lane Huisman Law Firm 
 Lookout Mtn, GA 30750 6110 Shallowford Rd. 
 423-653-4380 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-702-4664 
 
Dee Inman 5025-A Bess Moore Rd. Community Trust & Banking 
 Apison, TN 37302 9125 Lee Highway 
 423-509-2038 Chattanooga, TN 37363 
  423-238-1111 
 
Vanessa A. Jackson 14 W. 51st St. City of Chattanooga 
 Chattanooga, TN 37410 101 E. 11th St, Ste. 200 
 423-499-9742 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-643-7311 
 
Ross Jenkins 8605 Boulder View Dr. Comtrust FCU 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 1020 Riverfront Pkway 
 423-883-7678 Chattnooga, TN 37402 
  423-752-0202 
 
Susan W. Jones 4134 Night Owl Ct. Pointer Management Co. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37419 735 Broad St, Ste. 1108 
 423-825-1217 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-3544 
 
Paula T. Keylon 2524 Love Lane Kelly & Dutton of Ameriprise 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 7047 Lee Hwy 
 423-842-1312 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-386-5751 
 
Shelley Kincer 4526 Sherry Lane Hamilton County Govt. 
 Hixson, TN 37343 317 Oak St, Ste. 200 
 423-645-8079 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-209-6125 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
MARCH 4, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 
Heather M. Klapp 1871 North Prairie Circle Lewin Construction 
 Hixson, TN 37343 2114 Fort St. 
 423-315-1859 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-255-5798 
 
Leiah Layne 2535 Folkner Rd. Suntrust Bank 
 Hixson, TN 37343 3513 Dayton Blvd. 
 423-637-6970 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-870-4235 
 
Anna M. Lusk 3904 Sells Dr. Suntrust Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 2801 E. 48th St. 
 865-789-0330 Chattanooga, TN 37407 
  423-867-1102 
 
Matt Mikell 9327 Hopi Trl UPS Store dba Madril, Inc. 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 5958 Snow Hill Rd, Ste. 144 
 423-309-7584 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-910-0123 
 
Hugh J. Moore, Jr. 101 Ridgeside Rd. Chambliss, Bahner,  et al 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 605 Chesnut St, Ste. 1700 
 423-624-3085 Chattanooga, TN 37450 
  423-756-3000 
 
Terrence L. Olsen 1175 Pineville Rd, Apt. 25 Olsen Law Firm 
 Chattanooga, TN 37405 535 Chesnut St, Ste. 160 
 423-400-3867 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-648-9390 
 
Curtis L. Ottinger 7863 Hampton Cove Dr. Heritage Funeral Home 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 7454 E. Brainerd Rd. 
 423-313-8584 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-894-2010 
 
Lisa Pozdol 4115 Alabama Ave. Title Guaranty & Trust 
 Chattanooga, TN 37409 617 Walnut St. 
 423-463-7833 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-5751 
 
Patricia Rodriguez 1246 N. Moore Rd. La Macarena 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 2825 Rossville Blvd. 
 256-338-2265 Chattanooga,TN 37407 
  423-697-1945 
 
Kelli Schaad 7072 Gregory Dr. N/A 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 N/A 
 423-593-4895 N/A 
  N/A 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
MARCH 4, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 
Christy Scroggins 2137 North Fork Dr. Heritage Funeral Home 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 7454 E. Brainerd Rd. 
 423-618-6176 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-894-2010 
 
Marilyn Sederstrom 9500 Stone Mist Lane Metro Properties Management 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 6016 E. Brainerd Rd. 
 712-470-2660 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-320-1111 
 
Tammy Singleton 5555 Crooked Creek Dr. Memorial Healthcare System 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 2525 Desales Ave. 
 404-398-1148 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-495-8665 
 
Katie A. Smith 1207 Summerfield Ave. Berke, Berke, & Berke 
 Cleveland, TN 37311 420 Frazier Ave. 
 423-504-0648 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-266-5171 
 
Dayna Smith 452 Martin Clement Rd. Horton, Ballard, & Pemerton 
 Chickamauga, GA 30707 735 Broad St, Ste. 306 
 423-802-3943 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-826-2640 
 
Randy Stargin, Jr. 1706 Oak St. Chattanooga Fire Dept 
 Chattanooga, TN 37404 912 Shallowford Rd. 
 423-421-2551 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-643-7115 
 
Rebecca Lynn Stone 1043 Sunset Dr. Chambliss, Bahner, et al 
 Rising Fawn, GA 30738 605 Chesnut St, Ste. 1700 
 423-580-9209 Chattanooga, TN 37450 
  423-756-3000 
 
B. Tawater 245 Shady Brook Ln. Northgate Title Escrow, Inc. 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 1043 Executive Dr, Ste. 104 
 706-858-6414 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-875-9533 
 
Aimee Taylor 6104 Morning Glory Dr. The Ballinger Agency 
 Harrison, TN 37341 6801 Harrison Park Dr. 
 423-344-5223 Harrison, TN 37341 
  423-243-3389 
 
Neal L. Thompson 50 South Crest Rd. Self Employed 
 Chattanooga, TN 37404 2158 Northgate Pk Ln, Ste. 412 
 423-624-1321 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-256-7025 

 5 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
MARCH 4, 2015 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 
Kim L. Wall 2801 Amsterdam Lane Bank of America 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 2126 Gunbarrel Road 
 423-800-4562 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-424-1470 
 
Regina L. Ware 1903 Howell Mill Rd. Priority Payment Systems 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 200 Martin Luther King Blvd. 
 423-315-4360 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-702-7166 
 
Gregory Willett 4010 Ooltewah Ringgold Rd. Chambliss, Bahner, et al 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 605 Chestnut St, Ste. 1700 
 423-505-1669 Chattanooga, TN 37450 
  423-757- 0224 
 

 6 



 

REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 
TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

THE OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK 
MARCH 4, 2015 

 
The individual listed below appeared in the County Clerk's Office to receive the oath as 
Deputy County Clerk as prescribed by law. 
 

Name Date of Oath 
Ben Edwards February 18, 2015 

  
  
  
  
  

 

  MB_______ 
  PAGE_______ 



OATH 
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON 

I, BeN £JwtJ. eds do solemnly swear that I will perform 
with fidelity the duties of the Office of Deputy County Clerk of Hamilton County, 
Tennessee, to which I have been appointed and which I am about to assume, without 
partiality of favor, to the best of my skill and ability. 

I further swear that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the 
Constitution of the State of Tennessee, so help me God. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this __ /_g __ day of If£ rCIArj ,2015 



REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 
TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF 
MARCH 4, 2015 

 
 
The individual listed below has been duly appointed Deputy Sheriff for Hamilton County, 
Tennessee by Sheriff James W. Hammond, III.  The person was qualified as prescribed by 
law and was administered the oath of office on the date indicated below: 
 

 
NAME DATE OF OATH 

Robert James Hirko February 19, 2015 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

  MB_____________ 
  PAGE___________ 



STATE OF TENNESSEE } ss 
Hamilton County · 

I, . -~~l?~i:t.J)~l!l~~ ~ir~!> ................................. , do solemnly swear that I 

will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of 

Tennessee, and that I will faithfully execute the duties of the office of Deputy Sheriff of 

Hamilton County, Tennessee, to which office I have been appointed by James W. 

Hammond, III, Sheriff of Said County of Hamilton and State of Tennessee, and which duties 

I am about to assume, to the best of my skill and ability, according to law. 

I further swear that I have not promised or given, nor will I give, any fee, gift, gratuity or 

reward for the office, or for aid in procuring said office, and that I will not take any fee, gift, 

bribe or gratuity for returning any man as juror, or for making any false return of any process; 

and I further swear that I have nor directly or indirectly given, accepted, or knowingly carried 

a challenge, either in writing or otherwise, to any person being a citizen of this State, either in 

or out of the State, nor will I, during my continuance in office, be guilty of either of these acts, 

so help me God. 

Sworn to and subscribed bef re me this 

/ y-f/__ day of fr. , 2015 . 

. IJ. ~;/ .. f)!Wi+~ .......... . 

By .... J~¥··.··· 
Robert James Hirko 



REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 
TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

OATH OF MEMBER OF THE HAMILTON COUNTY RAILROAD 
AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MARCH 4, 2015 
 
The individual listed below was elected as a member of the Hamilton County 
Railroad Authority Board of Directors and received the oath as prescribed by law. 
 
 
 Name Date 
 William “Bill” Kilbride February 10, 2015 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          MB_________ 
          PAGE_______ 



OATH 

MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

HAMILTON COUNTY RAILROAD AUTHORITY 

I, WILLIAM "BILL" KILBRIDE, do solemnly swear that as a member of the 

Hamilton County Railroad Authority Board of Directors that I will support the Constitution of 

the State of Tennessee and the Constitution of the United States. I further solemnly swear that I 

will faithfully and impartially discharge all the duties incumbent upon me as an appointed 

member of the Board to the best of my skill and ability. So help me God. 

Administered by: 



No. 315-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR 
OF ONE MEMBER TO THE CARTER STREET CORPORATION BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS FOR A TERM ENDING MARCH 4, 2019. 
 
WHEREAS,   pursuant to Hamilton County Resolution No. 1281-10, certain members of the 

Carter Street Corporation Board of Directors are appointed by the County 
Mayor and confirmed by the Board of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS,    the County Mayor has reappointed Hicks Armor, for a term beginning March 4, 

2015 and ending March 4, 2019;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of Hicks Armor to the Carter Street Corporation Board of Directors is 
hereby confirmed for the term as stated above; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 315-3 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF MARCH 2015 AS MYELOMA 
AWARENESS MONTH  
 
WHEREAS,  Multiple myeloma (or myeloma), the second most common blood cancer  
  worldwide, is a cancer of plasma cells in the bone marrow.  It is called 
  “multiple” because the cancer can occur at multiple sites.  
   
WHEREAS, Multiple myeloma currently affects more than 100,000 people in the United 

States, with an estimated 20,000 new cases diagnosed each year and 10,000 
 losing their battle each year; AND 
 

WHEREAS, Once a disease of the elderly, it is now being found in increasing numbers in  
  people under 65; AND 
 
WHEREAS, Because myeloma is a rare disease there can be a delayed diagnosis, leading to 
  delayed treatment.  For this reason an increased awareness of myeloma for the  
  clinicians and the general public will lead to earlier diagnosis allowing people 
  to live longer; AND 
 
WHEREAS, Continued investment and innovation is critical to achieve early diagnosis and  
  the most effective and safest treatments for myeloma patients; AND 
 
WHEREAS, Although we have seen important advances in the last decade there is still no  
  cure for myeloma; AND 
 
THUS,  The State of Tennessee is committed to finding a cure for myeloma and 
  supports the treatment of its citizens that suffer from myeloma and encourages 
  private efforts to enhance research funding and education programs; AND 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 



 

 

 
  That the Board of County Commissioners do hereby proclaim the month of  
  March, 2015 as MYELOMA AWARENESS MONTH in Hamilton County,  
  Tennessee, and encourage all residents to join us in participating in voluntary  
  activities to support myeloma education and the funding of research programs 
  to find a cure. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.   
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 315-4A 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 

(P.C. NO. 2015-015) 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, A-1 AGRICULTURAL 

DISTRICT AND C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED 
AT 1704 & 1714 THRASHER PIKE AND 1636 & 7640 

MIDDLE VALLEY ROAD 
 
 WHEREAS, Polestar Development, LLC/Gray, Ledford & Ford, Sexton & 
Booher petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission 
to rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District, A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local 
Business Commercial District to C-2 Local Business Commercial District, properties 
located at 1704 & 1714 Thrasher Pike and 1636 & 7640 Middle Valley Road, and said 
Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Polestar Development, LLC/Gray, Ledford & Ford, Sexton & 
Booher requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has 
been published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the 
County Commission will hold a public hearing on February 18, 2015, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District, A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business 
Commercial District to C-2 Local Business Commercial District, properties located at 1704 & 
1714 Thrasher Pike and 1636 & 7640 Middle Valley Road.  Lots 1, 2, 5, and 6 of the Marvin 
Rawlston Subdivision, Plat Book 49, Page 64, R.O.H.C.  and Plat Book 59, Page 32, 
R.O.H.C., being the properties described in Deed Book 4946, Page 431, R.O.H.C., Deed 
Book 4794, Page 882, R.O.H.C., Deed Book 6726, Page 893, R.O.H.C., and Deed Book 
8983, Page 424, R.O.H.C.  Tax Maps 083J-D-001, 002, 003, and 004 as shown on the 



 

 

attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 























No. 315-4B 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 

(P.C. NO. 2015-015) 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-2A RURAL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, A-1 AGRICULTURAL 

DISTRICT AND C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED 
AT 1704 & 1714 THRASHER PIKE AND 1636 & 7640 

MIDDLE VALLEY ROAD 
 
 WHEREAS, Polestar Development, LLC/Gray, Ledford & Ford, Sexton & 
Booher petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission 
to rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District, A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local 
Business Commercial District to C-2 Local Business Commercial District, properties 
located at 1704 & 1714 Thrasher Pike and 1636 & 7640 Middle Valley Road, and said 
Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Polestar Development, LLC/Gray, Ledford & Ford, Sexton & 
Booher requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has 
been published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the 
County Commission will hold a public hearing on February 18, 2015, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone from R-2A Rural Residential District, A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business 
Commercial District to C-2 Local Business Commercial District, subject to submittal of a 
traffic study to the Hamilton County Engineer and provision of sidewalk from the 
proposed driveway on Thrasher Pike to the intersection of Middle Valley Road and 
Thrasher Pike and sidewalk from the building entry to the driveway connection location 
on Middle Valley Road, properties located at 1704 & 1714 Thrasher Pike and 1636 & 7640 
Middle Valley Road.  Lots 1, 2, 5, and 6 of the Marvin Rawlston Subdivision, Plat Book 49, 



 

 

Page 64, R.O.H.C.  and Plat Book 59, Page 32, R.O.H.C., being the properties described in 
Deed Book 4946, Page 431, R.O.H.C., Deed Book 4794, Page 882, R.O.H.C., Deed Book 
6726, Page 893, R.O.H.C., and Deed Book 8983, Page 424, R.O.H.C.  Tax Maps 083J-D-
001, 002, 003, and 004 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 























No. 315-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BID OF SHIELDS ELECTRONICS FOR 
BOGEN EQUIPMENT FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING MARCH 4, 2015 THROUGH MARCH 3, 
2016, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE YEAR TERM FOR 
THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 
TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
   
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit pricing for 

Bogen Equipment for the Telecommunications Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the unit price bid from Shields Electronics was considered to be the best overall bid 

received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the unit price bid of Shields Electronics for Bogen Equipment for the period beginning March 4, 
2015 through March 3, 2016, with the option to renew for one (1) additional one year term for the 
Telecommunications Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the best overall bid received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM  
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 





































No. 315-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF THOMAS BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY, INC. FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD AND 
STANDIFER GAP ROAD INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $749,593.10 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 409-14 was approved by this Legislative Body on April 1, 2009 for 

Agreement No. 090035 with the Tennessee Department of Transportation for the 
improvement of the intersection at Ooltewah-Ringgold Road (SR-321) and Standifer 
Gap Road; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Thomas Brothers Construction Company, Inc. amounting to 

$749,593.10 was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the construction contract is contingent upon approval by Tennessee Department of 

Transportation; and, 
 
WHEREAS, 80% of the cost will be reimbursed to Hamilton County by the Federal Highway 

Administration per Tennessee Department of Transportation Agreement No. 090035, 
and the remaining 20% of the cost will be funded by the County’s line of credit. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Thomas Brothers Construction, Inc. for the construction of the Ooltewah-Ringgold 
Road and Standifer Gap Road intersection improvements for an amount not to exceed $749,593.10 is 
hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and the County Mayor is authorized 
to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 315-7 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2015, THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between January 1, 2015, through January 31, 

2015.  
 
 January 2, 2015, $12,202.28 for 8,551 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.4270 per gallon 

from Collins Oil Company, Inc.  
 
 January 6, 2015, $11,195.64 for 8,055 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.3899 per gallon 

from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company.  
 
 January 12, 2015, $9,283.71 for 7,281 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.27506 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants.  
 
 January 16, 2015, $974.82 for 601 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 1.6220 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 January 20, 2015, $12,831.10 for 7,985 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.6069 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 January 23, 2015, $10,682.83 for 7,863 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.35862 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants.  
  
 January 26, 2015, $11,978.79 for 7,322 gallons of diesel fuel at 1.6360 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
  
 January 28, 2015, $11,840.73 for 8,569 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.38181 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 



 

 

 
  January 30, 2015, $11,415.29 for 8,552 gallons of E10 gasoline at 1.334809 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 







No. 315-8 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF PROSYS INFORMATION SYSTEMS FOR 
DELL SERVERS AND DELL POWER VAULT SYSTEM COMPONENTS AMOUNTING 
TO $63,039.36 FOR THE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for Dell Servers and 

Dell Power Vault system components for the Information Technology 
Services Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from ProSys Information Systems amounting to $63,039.36 was 

considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projets funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of ProSys Information Systems for Dell Servers and Dell Power Vault system 
components amounting to $63,039.36 for the Information Technology Services Department is 
hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 







































No. 315-9 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF INSIGHT PUBLIC SECTOR FOR 
MICROSOFT SQL SERVER SOFTWARE LICENSES AMOUNTING TO $29,335.28 FOR 
THE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING 
THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT 
THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for twelve (12) 

Microsoft SQL Server Standard Edition and ten (10) Microsoft SQL Server 
Developer Edition Licenses for the Information Technology Services 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Insight Public Sector amounting to $29,335.28 was considered to 

be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Insight Public Sector for Microsoft SQL Server licenses amounting to 
$29,335.28 for the Information Technology Services Department is hereby accepted, said bid 
being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 

























No. 315-10 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

March 4, 2015 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 AN INITIAL RESOLUTION OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF INTEREST-BEARING GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, IN AN AGGREGATE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $40,000,000, TO BE ISSUED IN ONE OR MORE 
SERIES, TO FINANCE OR REFINANCE CERTAIN SCHOOL PROJECTS AND VARIOUS 
OTHER PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS IN HAMILTON COUNTY PURSUANT TO SECTION 
9-21-101, ET. SEQ., OF THE TENNESSEE CODE ANNOTATED. 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Hamilton County, Tennessee, 
acting as the legislative body of said County, that said County will issue bonds of said County in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $40,000,000 to (1) finance or refinance (including 
reimbursing the County for amounts expended prior to the date of issuance of said bonds for such 
projects) the costs of designing, acquiring, constructing, equipping and furnishing certain school 
projects and various other public works projects, including abattoirs, acquisitions of land for the 
purpose of providing or preserving open land, airports, alleys, ambulances, auditoriums, bridges, city 
and town halls, local government stables or garages, community houses, corrective, detention and penal 
facilities, including, but not limited to, jails, workhouses and reformatories, courthouses, culverts, 
curbs, dispensaries, drainage systems, including storm water sewers and drains, electric plants and 
systems, expositions, facilities for the handicapped, including physically and mentally handicapped, 
facilities for the indigent, fairgrounds and fairground facilities, fire department equipment and 
buildings, fire alarm systems, flood control, garbage collection and disposal systems, gas and natural 
gas systems and storage facilities, heat plants and systems, harbor and riverfront improvements, health 
centers and clinics, including medical and mental health centers and clinics, highways, major roads, 
highway and street equipment, hospitals, hotels and supporting or incidental facilities built by local 
governments which are built adjacent to and as a supporting facility of civic or convention centers 
located in municipalities which have created a central business improvement district under the 
provisions of the Central Business Improvement District Act of 1971, compiled in title 7, chapter 84 of 
the Tennessee Code Annotated, improvements made pursuant to a plan of improvement for a central 
business improvement district created pursuant to the Central Business Improvement District Act of 
1971, compiled in title 7, chapter 84 of the Tennessee Code Annotated, incinerators, law enforcement 
and emergency services equipment, levees, libraries, markets, memorials, museums, nursing homes, 
parks, parking facilities, parkways, playgrounds, plazas, port facilities, docks and dock facilities, 
including any terminal storage and transportation facilities incident thereto, public art, public buildings, 
preserves, railroads, including the extension of railroads, and railway beltlines and switches, 



 

 

reclamation of land, recreation centers and facilities, reservoirs, rights-of-way, river and navigation 
improvements, roads, sanitariums, schools, transportation equipment for schools, sewers, sewage and 
waste water systems, including, but not limited to, collection, drainage, treatment and disposal systems, 
ship canals, sidewalks, stadiums, streets, swimming pools, thermal transfer generating plants and/or 
distribution systems, tunnels, viaducts, voting machines, water treatment distribution and storage 
systems, wharves, zoos, business parks which include lands and rights, easements and franchises 
relating thereto and may include roads and streets, water, sewer, electric and other utilities, landscaping 
and related elements as required for the orderly development and use of corporate or professional office 
space by one or more commercial, financial or service business, and such appurtenant land for 
necessary incidental use, and industrial parks, which include lands, rights, easements and franchises 
relating thereto and may include adequate roads and streets, water and sewer facilities, utilities, docks 
and terminals, and all property real and personal, appurtenant thereto or connected with any public 
works project, work or undertaking, and (2) pay the County's expenses in connection with the issuance 
and sale of said bonds. 

Said bonds will bear interest at a rate or rates not exceeding 6.0% per annum.  Both principal of 
and interest on said bonds or borrowing will be payable from ad valorem taxes to be levied for such 
purpose on all taxable property within Hamilton County, Tennessee without limitation as to rate or 
amount. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, as required by Section 9-21-206, Tennessee Code Annotated, the 
County Clerk is authorized and directed to publish this resolution together with the following notice. 

The foregoing resolution has been adopted.  Unless within twenty (20) days from the 
date of the publication hereof, a petition signed by at least ten percent (10%) of the 
registered voters of Hamilton County, Tennessee shall have been filed with the County 
Clerk protesting the issuance of the bonds, such bonds will be issued as proposed. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION WILL TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS ADOPTION, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 315-11 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

March 4, 2015 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, 
APPROVING THE SELECTION OF BOND COUNSEL AND A FINANCIAL ADVISOR IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED ISSUANCE BY THE COUNTY OF ITS GENERAL 
OBLIGATION BONDS. 

WHEREAS, the County previously issued its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009 (the “Series 
2009 Bonds”) and its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011A (the “Series 2011A 
Bonds”) to finance the acquisition, construction and equipping of various public works 
projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Administrator of Finance has recommended that the County consider the issuance 
of one or more series of its general obligation bonds (the “Series 2015 Bonds”) for the 
purpose of (1) financing the acquisition, construction and equipping of various public 
works projects, including school projects and (2) advance refunding a portion of the 
Series 2009 Bonds and the Series 2011A Bonds to achieve debt service savings; and 

WHEREAS, the Administrator of Finance has recommended that the Mayor and this Legislative 
Body approve the selection of McKenna Long & Aldridge LLP, as bond counsel, and 
Public Financial Management, Inc., as financial advisor to the County, in connection 
with the proposed issuance and delivery by the County of its Series 2015 Bonds, 
pursuant to the terms of certain engagement letter agreements to be executed by the 
County. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 

Section 1.  That McKenna Long & Aldridge LLP is hereby approved to serve as bond counsel 
in connection with the proposed issuance and delivery by the County of its Series 2015 Bonds, and 
the Administrator of Finance or his designee is hereby authorized to execute one or more engagement 
letter agreements with McKenna Long & Aldridge LLP in substantially the form of the engagement 
letter agreements presented at this meeting of this Legislative Body with such modifications as may 
be approved by the Administrator of Finance or his designee. 



 

 

 Section 2.  That Public Financial Management, Inc., is hereby approved to serve as financial 
advisor of the County in connection with the proposed issuance and delivery by the County of its 
Series 2015 Bonds, and the Administrator of Finance or his designee is hereby authorized to execute 
one or more engagement letter agreements with Public Financial Management, Inc., in substantially 
the form of the engagement letter agreements presented at this meeting of this Legislative Body with 
such modifications as may be approved by the Administrator of Finance or his designee. 
 
 Section 3.   That all orders or resolution in conflict herewith be and the same are repealed 
insofar as such conflict exists. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 











No. 315-12 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH THE 
UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (USGS) TO PROVIDE HAMILTON COUNTY WITH LIDAR 
DATA AT A COST OF $71,502 AND  TO AMEND HAMILTON COUNTY GENERAL BUDGET BY 
ADDING $47,668 TO THE REVENUE BUDGET AND $47,668 TO THE EXPENDITURE BUDGET. 
 
WHEREAS, Via Resolution 206-25 Hamilton County entered into a partnership, Hamilton County 

Geographic System Partnership, with other area governments, quasi-governmental agencies 
and utilities to maintain a current Geographic Information System; and 

 
WHEREAS, Geographic Information System Data Acquisition is a designated Professional Service; and 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County requires valid LiDAR data to satisfy the needs of accurate 

orthophotography and adequate flood disaster recovery planning and mitigation; and 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Tennessee has entered into an agreement with the USGS to obtain LiDAR data; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County has been invited to join in the effort at a savings to the County; and 
 
WHEREAS, Partial funding of $23,834 for this contract will be provided by the Hamilton County 

Geographic Information System Partnership; and 
 
WHEREAS, The balance of this cost, $47,668, will be borne on a 50/50 basis between the City of 

Chattanooga and Hamilton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County’s portion, $23,834, has already been budgeted; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Hamilton County budget will need to be amended by adding $47,668 to Revenue and 

Expenditure budget; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor be authorized to enter into a contract with United States Geological Survey to provide 
Hamilton County with complete LiDAR data at a cost of $71,502 and to amend the Hamilton County budget by 
adding $47,668 to the Revenue budget and $47,668 to Expenditure budget subject to the conditions outlined 
above.  
 



 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 















No. 315-13 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE RULES AND PROCEDURES OF THE 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO ALLOW INDIVIDUALS 
AND/OR DELEGATIONS TO APPEAR AND ADDRESS THE COMMISSION ON 
MATTERS BEING CONSIDERED PRIOR TO THE COMMISSION MAKING A 
DECISION. 
 

WHEREAS, by previous policies and procedures established by this county 
legislative body (“Commission”), individuals and/or delegations 
desiring to appear before and address the Commission  have 
only been allowed to do so during the announcement period at 
the close of the Commission meetings, and then only on matters 
other than zoning; and  

 
WHEREAS,   this county legislative body realizes that such policy and  

restrictions prohibit the Commission from receiving input from 
the citizens of this County as the Commission is openly debating 
the various matters that may come before it; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is felt that individuals and/or delegations who take of their 
personal time to attend Commission meetings should be allowed 
to address the Commission on matters being considered prior to  
making a decision; and  
 

WHEREAS,  in the interest of fairness, individuals and/or delegations desiring 
to appear before the Commission and speak to the various issues 
should be limited in the amount of time they expend while 
addressing the Commission, and the time afforded for anyone to 
speak to an issue should not exceed three (3) minutes for each 
speaker, with individuals and delegations sharing the same or 
similar views being grouped and afforded a total of ten (10) 
minutes for the presentation of their collective view; and  



 

 

WHEREAS,  such changes in procedure are deemed in the best interest of the 
citizens of this County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

 
That the rules and procedures for this county legislative body are hereby 
amended to allow individuals and/or delegations who wish to appear and 
address this County Commission opportunities to do so prior to the 
Commission taking a vote of the various items/issues being considered by it; 
that said opportunities to address the Commission shall not exceed three (3) 
minutes for each speaker; that individuals and delegations sharing the same or 
similar views should will be grouped and afforded a total of ten (10) minutes 
for the presentation of their collective view(s); if there are more than three (3) 
persons desiring to speak; that the total amount of time allowed for citizen input 
on any issue (both for and against) shall not exceed twenty (20) minutes total; 
and that the Chairman of the Commission is empowered to regulate this 
procedure to insure openness and fairness to the citizens desiring to address the 
Commission, and fairness in its application.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 



No. 315-14 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
March 4, 2015 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION WAIVING THE HAMILTON COUNTY PURCHASING RULES AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO DONATE NARCOTICS/PATROL DOGS TO THEIR 
RESPECTIVE HAMILTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE HANDLERS AT THE TIME SUCH 
DOGS ARE RETIRED FROM SERVICE, OR OTHERWISE RELEASE SAID DOGS FROM THE 
COUNTY INVENTORY IN A MANNER IN THE BEST INTEREST OF PUBLIC SAFETY.   
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Purchasing Rules and Regulations require the marketing of or 

sale of county-owned surplus property at public auction; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Hamilton County Purchasing Rules and Regulations have no provisions for 

donating surplus county property to another governmental or non-profit agency or 
individual, that authority residing with the Hamilton County Commission; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  Narcotics/Patrol dogs are trained by and specifically bond with their individual 

handlers; said bond is not readily transferable to another individual for public safety 
and liability reasons; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there is no other use for these animals by the County once retired from active service. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the Board of County Commissioners does hereby waive the Purchasing Rules to allow the 
donation of the herein described surplus property to their respective handlers in the Hamilton County 
Sheriff’s Office once the narcotics/patrol dogs are retired from active service; or allow said dogs to be 
otherwise released from the inventory of County assets as deemed appropriate by the Mayor and in a 
manner in the best interest of public safety. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 

 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

March 4, 2015 

  
Date 

 


	3-4-15 Public Agenda
	315-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - February 11, 2015 _1415_02-11-15 Agenda
	315-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - February 11, 2015 _1414_02-11-15 Recessed
	315-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - February 18, 2015 _1416_02-18-15 Regular
	315-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report January 2015_1403_January 2015 Excess Fee Report
	315-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report January 2015_1404_January 2015 Monthly Report
	315-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1413_03-04-15
	315-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1413_03-04-15A
	315-2_R_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of Hicks Armor to the Carter Street Corporation Board of Directors for a term ending March 4 2019_1417_Reappointment  to the Carter St Corporation Brd Dir
	315-3_R_Bill Bennett_Special Presentation by Assessor_1336_Proclaming March 2015 Myeloma Awareness Month
	315-4A_R_Zoning_Zoning_1401_Thrasher Pike Middle Valley A
	315-4A_S_Zoning_Zoning_1401_Thrasher Pike Middle Valley A Supporting
	315-4B_R_Zoning_Zoning_1402_Thrasher Pike Middle Valley B
	315-4B_S_Zoning_Zoning_1402_Thrasher Pike Middle Valley B Supporting
	315-5_R_Bill McGriff_Bogen Equipment Contract_1399_RES. BOGEN EQUIPMENT CONTRACT
	315-5_S_Bill McGriff_Bogen Equipment Contract_1399_Bogen Equipment Contract
	315-6_R_Todd Leamon_Ooltewah Ringgold Road and Standifer Gap Road Intersection Improvements_1406_RES. OOLTEWAH RINGGOLD RD. & STANDIFER GAP INTERSECTION IMPROVE.
	315-6_S_Todd Leamon_Ooltewah Ringgold Road and Standifer Gap Road Intersection Improvements_1406_Ooltewah Ringgold Rd. & Standifer Gap Intersection improve.
	315-7_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel January 2015_1398_Fuel Resolution January 2015
	315-7_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel January 2015_1398_January 2015 docs
	315-8_R_Albert Kiser_Dell Servers and Dell Power Vault System Components._1407_RES. ADDITIONAL DELL SERVERS & POWER VAULT SYSTEM (BID 0215-110)
	315-8_S_Albert Kiser_Dell Servers and Dell Power Vault System Components._1407_Additional Dell Servers
	315-9_R_Albert Kiser_Microsoft SQL Server Licenses_1408_RES. MICROSOFT SQL SERVER LICENSES
	315-9_S_Albert Kiser_Microsoft SQL Server Licenses_1408_Microsoft SQL Server Licenses
	315-10_R_Albert Kiser_An Initial Resolution authorizing the issuance of G. O. Bonds in a principal amount not to exceed forty million dollars._1409_STATE OF TENNESSEE
	315-11_R_Albert Kiser_A resolution approving the selection of Bond Counsel and Financial Advisor in connection with the proposed issuance of G.O. Bonds._1412_STATE OF TENNESSEE
	315-11_S_Albert Kiser_A resolution approving the selection of Bond Counsel and Financial Advisor in connection with the proposed issuance of G.O. Bonds._1412_0807_001
	315-12_R_Albert Kiser_Elevation Data Acquisition_1419_A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH THE UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY
	315-12_S_Albert Kiser_Elevation Data Acquisition for GIS_1419_Hamilton County JFA
	315-13_R_Rheubin Taylor_Delegations to address the Commission._1418_Resolution allowing Individuals-Delegations to address the Commission
	315-14_R_Rheubin Taylor_Retirement of Sheriff Office K9 Dogs_1420_Retirement of Sheriff Office K9 Dogs

